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State of Rhode Island 

Department of Administration / Division of Purchases 

One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 02908-5855 

Tel: (401) 574-8100   Fax: (401) 574-8387 
 

Solicitation Information 

 

April 18, 2016 

 

 

ADDENDUM #1 

RFP# 7550411  

 

RFP Title: Home- And Placement-Based Services to Improve Outcomes for DCYF Children, 

Youth and Families 
 

Bid Opening Date & Time: May 2, 2016 at 10:00 AM (Eastern Time)                                                  

NOTE CHANGE 

              

 

Notice to Vendors 
 

1. Extension of Closing Date: 

The original RFP # 7550411 Home- And Placement-Based Services to Improve Outcomes 

for DCYF Children, Youth and Families closing date has been changed from April 26, 2016 

at 10:00 AM (Eastern Time) to May 2, 2016 at 10:00 AM (Eastern Time).  

 

2. Vendor Question with State Responses: Pre-bid and Email: 

ATTACHED ARE VENDOR QUESTIONS WITH STATE RESPONSES.  NO FURTHER 

QUESTIONS WILL BE ANSWERED. 

 

3. Pre-bid Attendance Sheets: 

See attached. 

 
 

David J. Francis 

Interdepartmental Project Manager 

 

 
Interested parties should monitor this website, on a regular basis, for any additional information that may 

be posted. 
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State Responses to Vendor Questions for RFP # 7550411 

 

 Question Response 

1 P. 12 of the RFP states asks for 
"comprehensively described" service 
models but with a total of 26 multi-part 
questions, we are concerned about not 
being able to provide sufficient answers 
for evaluation in the space allowed (10 
pages and 10 pages of attachments).  
Would the Department consider increasing 
the page limit? 

The Technical Proposal page limit has 
been increased to twelve (12) pages plus 
up to ten (10) pages of appendices.  
Additionally, responses to Technical 
Proposal elements 4.3.1, 4.3.2, and 4.3.3 
(together, Qualifications and 
Certifications) shall not count against 
either page limit.  There is no page limit 
on the Cost Proposal. 

2 Is a detailed logic model sufficient or must 
grantees submit BOTH a Theory Of 
Change model and a Logic Model? 

As stated on page 14, for locally-
developed programs, DCYF seeks 
proposals that include both a theory of 
change and a logic model.  These may be 
included in the Technical Proposal 
appendix.  

3 Will questions be allowed at the pre-
bid/proposal  conference? If so, will 
answers to questions asked be posted as an 
addendum to the solicitation? 

Yes, to both -- questions were allowed at 
the pre-bid and state responses will be 
posted as an addendum. 

4 On page 11, are adoption services 
excluded from the solicitation?  

As stated on page 11, excluded from the 
solicitation are services primarily designed 
to accelerate and sustain adoption or 
guardianship when reunification is not an 
option, such as adoption support services 
and adoptive family peer support 
resources. 

5 Section VI, Evaluation and Selection, page 
21:  What state agencies will be 
represented on the Technical Review 
Committee? 

The membership composition is not public 
knowledge during the bidding process.  
However, the final recommendation memo 
will contain the names of the individuals 
that served on the technical evaluation 
team.  This memo will be available per 
access to public records request after the 
awards are made.  See the Purchasing 
website here: 
http://www.purchasing.ri.gov/publicrecord
s/publicrec.aspx. 

6 Section VI, Evaluation and Selection, page 
21:  Is DCYF required to select the low 
bidder or able to choose the “vendor it 
deems to be in its best interest to 
accomplish the project”? 

As stated on page 22, the 
State/Department reserves the exclusive 
right to select the individual(s) or firm 
(vendor) that it deems to be in its best 
interest to accomplish the project as 
specified in the RFP. 

7 Section VII, Proposal Submission, page 
24:  Can the separately sealed technical 

Yes, as long as the cost proposal is 
separately sealed in the package apart 
from the technical proposal. 
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and separately sealed cost proposals be 
enclosed in one package? 

8 Define ‘evidence informed’ as it relates to 
program models to be considered. 
Specifically, would you allow a program 
model that uses some EB (evidence based) 
criteria but is not an exact EB model due 
to lack of certification/etc. 

Yes. See response to Question 10. 

9 Will DCYF support model costs 
associated with 
training/certification/fidelity for an EB 
model? (i.e. model costs range from 
$50,000-$70,000 for one year)  It doesn’t 
make sense to put this cost in a budget if 
DCYF won’t support.  

Training, certification, and fidelity costs 
typically fall within allowable cost 
categories defined by Federal OMB 
Circular A-122.  Any expenses associated 
with such proposed activities should be 
itemized in the Cost Proposal. 

10 On page 8 – ‘The Dept doesn’t expect 
every program to have an equally strong 
evidence base ; rather, it expects providers 
to be aware of the  available evidence for a 
program’s impact and proactively plan and 
adjust intake, management, and evaluation 
strategies based on the best information 
available’ . What does this mean? Please 
clarify. Are you saying you programs 
considered do not have to be EB? 

There are no requirements that proposed 
programming must be backed by any 
specific level of prior research, evidence, 
or evaluation. Offerors are asked to 
provide the best available evidence as to 
why the proposed service model is likely 
to cause the achievement of desired 
outcomes for the target population. DCYF 
seeks respondents who present compelling 
evidence that their program(s) will have a 
meaningful and observable impact on the 
children and families in their care, and 
demonstrate how the outcomes against 
which programs have been evaluated are 
relevant, achievable, and impactful. For 
programs where prior research or 
evaluation is limited or has not been 
conducted at all, DCYF seeks proposals 
that offer a well-constructed theory of 
change and logic model that indicate why 
the proposed service model is likely to 
cause the achievement of desired 
outcomes. Any program -- including 
evidence-based programs, evidence 
informed programs, and locally-developed 
programs -- will be considered.  

11 Again on page 8 – what are examples of 
‘locally-developed programs’? You state 
that ‘locally developed programs 
developed with deep knowledge of RI’s 
operating environment and population 
will’ be considered.  So again, if I find an 
EB model that is related to what I want to 
do, but the cost is $70,000 to become EB 
certified  (so I cannot call my proposed 

Yes. The hypothetical proposal may be 
considered evidence-informed. See 
response to Question 10 for more 
information. 
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program EB unless I become certified), 
will you consider that non EB hybrid 
program? Is that considered evidenced 
informed? Is that considered locally 
developed? 

12 Is it allowable for an agency to propose 
two rates within a treatment foster care 
program? More specifically, would an 
agency be allowed to propose a second 
“step-down” rate, for children and youth 
who no longer require the same intensity 
of services?  For instance, a child no 
longer needs to see a therapist twice a 
week and is transitioning to once a week. 
If an agency were to propose a lesser rate 
once this occurs, would that be 
acceptable? 

Yes. 

13 If a proposed service can meet outcome 
categories for both placement services and 
home-based services, should the  offeror 
send in two separate proposals for the 
same service? 

A bidder may submit a single proposal or 
multiple proposals. The RFP instructs 
offerors to identify which outcome 
category each proposal is primarily 
designed to accomplish.  Please state in 
Technical Proposal element 2.1.1 if 
multiple proposals are being submitted by 
the same Offeror for the same service 
capacity. 

14 Are there any guidelines or parameters 
regarding what can be contained in the 
appendices? 

No. 

15 Does an out of state provider who 
currently provides residential services to 
Rhode Island clients in a program located 
in another state need to respond and be 
awarded under this RFP #: 7550411 in 
order to continue to be eligible to provide 
these services? 

Yes.  Out of state residential providers are 
being asked to respond if they deem 
appropriate in order to be eligible to 
provide services. 

16 On page 10 - ) Does the term “outcome 
categories of services” refer to the details 
bulleted in the RFR on pages 10-11  
“Eight (8) outcome categories of services” 
(i.e., 2A through 4B), and as further 
defined in Appendix B charts (pages 27 – 
34)? 

Yes. 

17 On page 10- What do the terms 
“standalone service” and “bundled set of 
integrated services” entail – Can you 
provide a clarifying example of what 
“service(s)” would be included for each 
term “standalone service” and “bundled 
set of integrated services”?  

Each response shall propose either a single 
stand-alone service or a bundled set of 
integrated services.  Stand-alone services 
are typically delivered independently from 
other services and require new referrals to 
distinct services as clients’ strengths and 
needs change.  A bundled set of integrated 
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services may be delivered by one or more 
providers, and may be characterized by 
one or more the following characteristics: 
 
• A single referral as the basis for a child 
or family’s access to a sequence of 
services, or service intensities, based upon 
clinical needs, strengths, and progress. 
• A track record of service delivery and/or 
evaluation as an integrated program 
model. 
• A common payment rate for enrollment 
across a range of service types or 
intensity. 
• Commonality among frontline staff, 
clinicians, treatment modalities, units, 
facilities, and supportive resources that 
offers children and/or families continuity 
in care across service type or intensity. 

18 On page 10- Regarding the “Eight (8) 
outcome categories of services” as 
bulleted in the RFR on pages 10-11 (i.e., 
2A through 4B), is a bidder agency 
expected to address just one “outcome 
category of service” to prepare a 
“standalone service” proposal? Or could 
an agency include more than one 
“outcome category of service” to prepare a 
“standalone service” proposal?  

Proposals may address needs either within 
a single category or across multiple 
outcome categories of services requested.  
The RFP instructs offerors to identify 
which outcome category each proposal is 
primarily designed to accomplish. Only 1 
primary outcome category may be 
identified in Technical Proposal element 
2.1.1; additional outcomes may be 
identified in Technical Proposal element 
2.1.2.  Please state in Technical Proposal 
element 2.1.1 if multiple proposals are 
being submitted by the same Offeror for 
the same service capacity. 

19 On page 10- Is a bidder agency expected 
to address more than one “outcome 
category of service” to prepare a “bundled 
set of integrated services” proposal? 

See response to Question 18. 

20 On page 10- Is it accurate to understand 
that an agency could submit multiple 
proposals, either as “standalone services” 
and/or as a “bundled set of integrated 
services”?  

Yes. 

21 On page 24- If an agency is submitting a 
proposal that responds to needs either 
within a single outcome category (in the 
RFR on pages 10-11/Appendix B) or 
across multiple outcome categories, is the 
10 page response and the 10 appendices 
pages restriction for the Technical 
Proposal the page limitation per outcome 

The page limits apply to the Technical 
Proposal as a whole. 
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category? Or do the page requirements 
pertain to the overall proposal (i.e., per 
proposal whether the proposal describes a 
“standalone service” or a “bundled set of 
integrated services”)?   

22 On page 24- Or, does the 10-page with 10 
appendices pages Technical  Proposal 
restriction and separate applicable Cost 
Proposal requirement apply to each 
“outcome category of service”?  

See response to Question 21. 

23 On page 24- If an agency is submitting 
more than one (1) standalone service or 
more than one (1) bundled set of 
integrated services as individual proposals 
for each, is only one completed and signed 
three-page R.I.V.P. bidder certification 
cover sheet and one completed and signed 
W-9 required for a multiple proposal 
package or are these forms required for 
each individual proposal submitted? 

Vendors are to submit a W9 and signed 
three-page R.I.V.P. bidder certification 
cover sheet with each proposal. 

24 In the technical section to save space I was 
hoping we could format without using the 
questions – we discussed today in the 
conference. I have an example in the 
attached word document. 
 
Technical Proposal Elements 
1. Quality of Proposed Services 
1.1 Service Model and delivery 
1.1.1 Provide the answer to the question 
1.1.2 Provide the answer to the question 
1.1.3 Provide the answer to the question 
1.1.4 Provide answer 
1.1.5 Provide answer 
 
2. Suitability of Approach/Methodology 
2.1 Outcomes to be achieved 
2.1.1 answer 
2.1.2 answer 
 
And so on using the header and number 
for each section – will this be enough for 
the response, if we are required to type the 
entire question it takes too much space 

Please see response to Question 47 and 
Question 125. 

25 Page 3, Does DCYF consider Foster Care 
Programs a stand-alone placement based 
service? 

It depends on the specific proposal. See 
response to Question 17 for more 
information. 

26 Page 4, #9, How much funding is 
available?  

The Governor's FY17 proposed budget 
includes recommendations of 
appropriations for child welfare, children's 
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behavioral health, and juvenile 
corrections.  The proposed budget is 
available on the website of the Office of 
Management and Budget at 
http://openbudget.ri.gov. The DCYF 
budget is not final until approved by the 
General Assembly and Governor. 

27 Page 4, #9, Will DCYF please provide the 
amount of funding available per service 
requested? 

DCYF's proposed budget for FY17 does 
not itemize by service type.  For more 
information, see response to Question 26. 

28 Page 11, Services (2D); Should a DCYF 
client also be enrolled in Medicaid will the 
Provider be allowed to bill both Medicaid 
and DCYF?  

Offerors should reference their ability to 
bill outside services to support children.  
However, the source of DCYF funding, 
including Medicaid dollars, will not be 
taken into account during the cost 
proposal and budget scoring. 

29 Page 11, Services (2D); If a DCYF client 
is Medicaid enrolled should the provider 
bill Medicaid first and then recover any 
other “non-Medicaid billable services” 
from the DCYF contract? 

See response to Question 28. 

30 Page 18, When DCYF is paying out 
incentives is the payment going to be 
given as a flat rate or as a percentage of 
the total contract?  

Incentive payment structures are not 
specified in the RFP.  Offerors may 
address this in their proposal. 

31 Page 29, TFCO; Can this section include 
other Foster Care models or is this specific 
one required?  

Other foster care models may be proposed. 
TFCO is identified only as a program not 
currently offered through DCYF that may 
be appropriate to meet the needs of this 
outcome category. 

32 Page 30, Does a Provider need to offer 
services to all the subpopulations listed or 
can the Provider choose which 
subpopulations they would like to offer? 

Providers may specify which sub-
populations they propose to serve. 

33 Page 31, Can additional assessments be 
offered? 

Yes. 

34 Page 35, Can you please let us know how 
many providers you have in each 
category?  Possibly add another column to 
the grid on page 35. 

No, this information is not relevant to 
future contracting decisions. Many of the 
services listed in Appendix C were 
purchased through the two Networks of 
Care, which together held several 
subcontracts with providers. 

35 Page 43, There are no stats from FY14-
FY16. Is this an oversight or were none 
available? 

Figure 8 on page 43 includes information 
on living arrangements for children in out 
of home care from points in time between 
June 30, 2014 (FY14) through December 
31, 2015 (FY16). Additional information 
from prior years on the demographics, 
strengths and needs, care, and outcomes 
may be available in reports published on 
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the DCYF Data and Evaluation website at: 
http://www.dcyf.ri.gov/data_evaluation.ph
p. 

36 Page 43, If no stats were available can 
DCYF please provide a reason why? 

Not applicable. 

37 Page 44, Please explain “90% of youth 
who enter into congregate care as their 
first placement were previously 
discharged from congregate care.”  

Of children re-entering into out-of-home 
placement in SFY14, approximately 90% 
of youth who enter into congregate care as 
their first placement subsequent to re-
entering care were previously discharged 
from congregate care. (Source: RI DCYF 
Data and Evaluation; Entry cohort of 
children in Foster Care, Selected 
Permanency Indicators, July 1, 2012 - 
June 30, 2015. Online at 
http://www.dcyf.ri.gov/docs/reports/draft_
permanency_entry_cohort_FY13-
FY15.pdf) 

38 Is RFP 7550411 only requesting Proposal 
for the following sub population of 3D. 
Prepare Youth for indepence: 
a. Pregnant or Parenting youth. 
b. Youth identifying as LGBTQQI the 
only proposal for the section you are 
seeking. 

No, the solicitation requests services for 
all youth in DCYF care. Providers may 
specify which, if any, sub-populations 
they propose to solely serve. 

39 We are hoping for some clarification and 
guidance regarding the service(s ) 
delivery  we provide and how the 
service(s) should be procured.  We are a “ 
High End”  Residential facility ; within 
our treatment model we provide different 
levels of care( based on youth acuity of 
symptoms and needs)  each LOC has a 
different per diem rate . Please provide 
some  clarification as to how these 
services should be procured : should there 
be 1 RFP for our High end residential 
service with Acuity level rates discussed 
at negotiation? Or should each of our 
internal LOC be procured separately in 
individual RFP’s  or  procured in some 
other way?  

This is not specified in the RFP.  Bidders 
may submit multiple proposals. Please 
state in Technical Proposal element 2.1.1 
if multiple proposals are being submitted 
by the same Offeror for the same service 
capacity. 

40 On pages 27-34, Appendix B includes 
“Detailed Information on Scope of 
Services Requested.” In each of the tables 
is section including “potential program 
elements.” Are respondents required 
and/or encouraged to include all of the 
program elements listed under the 
outcome for which they are applying, or 

Potential program elements are not 
required to be included in proposals. 
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can proposals include some, but not all, of 
the “potential program elements?”  

41 On pages 27-34, Appendix B includes 
“Detailed Information on Scope of 
Services Requested.” The introduction on 
page 27 states “In this RFP, DCYF is 
procuring placement-based services for 
children, youth and families requiring 
temporary out of home care that safely 
care for youth while providing clinical 
treatment, addressing other barriers to 
returning to a family-like setting, and 
preparing youth for independence.” Can 
respondents apply for programs that meet 
the goals of providing clinical treatment, 
addressing other barriers to returning to a 
family-like setting, and preparing youth 
for independence that are “stand-alone” 
programs that serve children and families 
regardless of setting? In other words, will 
the department only consider bids that 
specifically include child placement and 
are placement-based, or will the 
department consider applications that 
attempt to meet the outcomes without 
being placement-based?  

As stated on page 10, proposals will be 
considered for both home-based and 
placement-based services. 

42 On page 11, the RFP states which services 
are excluded from this proposal. The 4th 
bullet-point includes “accelerate and 
sustain adoption or guardianship when 
reunification is not an option, such as 
adoption support services and adoptive 
family peer support resources.” Please 
clarify the scope of this exclusion. Does 
this exclusion apply specifically to support 
services (clinical and non-clinical supports 
to children and families) or does it also 
include other adoption and permanency 
related services, such as education, 
training, permanency support services (as 
support to the DCYF staff), and 
information/public awareness, etc? 

Proposals may generate secondary 
benefits related to accelerating and 
sustaining adoption or guardianship when 
reunification is not an option.  However, 
services primarily designed to achieve this 
outcome are excluded from the scope of 
this RFP. 

43 The RFP makes several references to 
supporting “permanency” for children in 
the care of the department, but specifically 
excludes adoption-related services on page 
11. It can be said that there are two 
distinct, though related and equally 
important types of services needed for 
children: (1) placement and (2) 
permanency. Placement can be considered 

Refer to the definition of "permanency" 
provided in Appendix E (page 49) of the 
RFP.  Please also see response to Question 
42. 
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services that provide a safe environment 
for children while in out of home care, as 
well as providing on-going clinical and 
behavioral supports for children to 
maintain safety and overall well-being. 
Permanency, on the other hand, relates 
specifically to the support, education, and 
advocacy needed to support children and 
families (whether it’s a birth family, foster 
family, kinship family, pre-adoptive or 
adoptive family) in order to mitigate or 
eliminate barriers the child faces to 
permanently returning/entering a family 
setting. However, at times the word 
“permanency” can also be used to mean 
“stepping down” from more restrictive 
care into less restrictive care – even if that 
less restrictive care is not “permanent” 
(for example, stepping down from 
congregate care into a foster family). 
Please clarify the intent of the word 
permanency as it’s used in this RFP. Is the 
department interested in proposals that 
include the first definition of permanency, 
or is this RFP meant solely for proposals 
that address “placement” supports and the 
latter “step-down” definition of 
permanency?  

44 On page 29, Outcome 3A, one of the 
“Supplemental characteristics of proposals 
sought by DCYF” is “well-developed 
plans for ongoing recruitment of foster 
families, including for the special 
populations identified above.” Other than 
this, there seems to be no other reference 
in the RFP specifically for targeted 
recruitment efforts for resource families, 
including foster, mentor and adoptive-
families? Should respondents interested in 
providing services that specifically recruit 
resources parents assume that this RFP, in 
response to Outcome 3A is the 
Department’s only request for these 
services? Or should these services be 
included in the exclusions on page 11 as 
excluded from this RFP because they will 
either be requested in subsequent RFPs or 
not requested at all? 

Services with a primary purpose of 
recruiting resource families are excluded 
from this RFP.  Proposals may include 
resource family recruitment as an element 
of programming designed to primarily 
address one or more of the outcome 
categories included in this RFP. 

45 Please clarify element 4.2.3 of the 
Technical Proposal on page 15, regarding 
“Offerer’s readiness to direct bill 

A range of activities may demonstrate 
provider readiness. Such activities on the 
part of the Offeror may include, but are 
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Medicaid and private health plans for 
covered activities and services. DCYF 
seeks proposals that demonstrate 
preparations undertaken to perform direct 
Medicaid billing for approved services or 
assist the Department in developing direct 
Medicaid billing for other services.” 
During the bidder’s conference, it was 
explained that section 4.2 Financial 
Management is part of the evaluation 
criteria “Capability, Capacity, and 
Qualifications of the Offerer,” which is 
worth a total of 20 points in the Technical 
Proposal. As such, applicants should 
assume that element 4.2.3 will be part of 
those 20 points and proposals that address 
this criterion adequately will be awarded 
more points, while those who are not able 
to demonstrate this criterion will be scored 
lower, accordingly. Please specify what 
the department determines to be 
“readiness” and how the department 
intends to unintentionally favor in its 
scoring larger organizations with more 
robust administrative capacities who 
perhaps already bill Medicaid vs. smaller 
organizations that are perhaps very willing 
to work with the department to be able to 
bill Medicaid, but have smaller 
infrastructure with which to have begun 
preparations. Also, will the department 
consider providing funding for 
organizations in order to support this 
increased administrative/infrastructure 
capacity?  

not limited to, identifying and/or planning 
for necessary operational reforms, staff 
qualifications, staff training and 
supervision, technical assistance, data 
system upgrades, or other steps necessary 
to direct bill Medicaid and private health 
care plans for covered activities and 
services. 

46 On page 11 of the RFP, it states, 
“Excluded in this solicitation are: Services 
to help transition children, youth and 
families from care, including services to 
(4C) support successful transitions to 
adulthood (such as the Consolidated 
Youth Services program) and (4D) 
accelerate and sustain adoption and 
guardianship when reunification is not an 
option, such as adoption support services 
and adoptive family peer support 
resources.”  Can you clarify that this 
means the contracts currently held by 
Adoption Rhode Island for “Adoption 
Resources and Education, in the Adoption 
Exchange and Preserving Families Post 

Correct. Excluded from the solicitation are 
services primarily designed to accelerate 
and sustain adoption or guardianship when 
reunification is not an option, such as 
adoption support services and adoptive 
family peer support resources.  See 
response to Question 42 for more 
information. 
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Adoption Support Services” are not in this 
procurement?  

47 It appears that some information is 
missing from Appendix A ( Page 26 ) 4C 
and 4D.... To whom should I address this 
question to?? 

No information is missing. As stated on 
page 11, services in outcome categories 
4C and 4D are excluded from this 
solicitation. 

48 Page 4-5 of the RFP states "In order to 
perform the contemplated services related 
to the Rhode Island Health Benefits 
Exchange (HealthSourceRI), the vendor 
hereby certifies that it is an “eligible 
entity,” as defined by 45 C.F.R. § 155.110, 
in order to carry out one or more of the 
responsibilities of a health insurance 
exchange. The vendor agrees to indemnify 
and hold the State of Rhode Island 
harmless for all expenses that are deemed 
to be unallowable by the Federal 
government because it is determined that 
the vendor is not an “eligible entity,” as 
defined by 45 C.F.R. § 155.110." Please 
provide additional information regarding 
this requirement.  What health insurance 
exchange responsibilities will TFC 
agencies need to carry out? 

This is standard language that is part of 
the RFP template.  It does not apply to 
these services.  

49 Page 15, Section 4.2.3 of the RFP states 
"Describe Offeror’s readiness to direct bill 
Medicaid and private health plans for 
covered activities and services. DCYF 
seeks proposals that demonstrate 
preparations undertaken to perform direct 
Medicaid billing for approved services or 
assist the Department in developing direct 
Medicaid billing for other services." When 
does DCYF anticipate requiring providers 
to direct bill Medicaid? Private health 
plans? Can DCYF provide more 
information on this, including the process 
for providers and time frames?  

DCYF anticipates requiring providers to 
direct bill for Medicaid during the second 
half of FY2017 for home and community 
based services. DCYF and the State 
Medicaid Office, the Executive Office of 
Health and Human Services will work 
with providers to identify services that are 
Medicaid claimable and, beginning in 
early FY2017, shift billing into the 
Medicaid Management Information 
System with HPE. DCYF will not be 
involved with the process for providers to 
direct bill private health plans (as opposed 
to Medicaid plans), but encourages 
providers to make all reasonable efforts to 
explore this option as Medicaid is the last 
payer of resort. 

50 Page 15, Section 4.3.2 of the RFP states 
“Describe any material litigation, 
administrative proceedings or 
investigations in which the organization or 
any of its principals, partners, associates, 
subcontractors or support staff is currently 
involved or that has been settled within the 
past five (5) years, and also describe any 

The RFP requires that the provider 
disclose “critical incidents” that the 
organization has experienced over the past 
five years.  Such incidents could include 
incidents of substantiated findings of child 
abuse and neglect against the provider 
and/or a staff person of the provider, 
incidents of child maltreatment which 
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critical incidents the organization has 
experienced over the past five (5) years, 
including but not limited to, staff assaults, 
client maltreatment, child deaths, and 
other infractions. DCYF seeks proposals 
that have identified and addressed any 
such proceedings and/or critical incidents 
that the Offeror has experienced.” With 
the exception of a child death, what 
determines if the incident was critical as it 
relates to those infractions? 

resulted in an injury to a child in the care 
of the provider which resulted in a finding 
of child abuse and neglect, incidents or 
infractions which resulted in the initiation 
of licensing action against the provider by 
DCYF and/or any other State regulatory 
agency, incidents or infractions which 
resulted in the submission of a corrective 
action plan to DCYF and/or any other 
State regulatory agency, incidents or 
infractions which resulted in the initiation 
of any criminal investigations of the 
provider and/or any staff member of the 
provider or incidents or infractions that 
resulted in the closure and/or relocation 
(temporary or otherwise) of a program. 

51 AS220, and AS220 Youth respectively, 
would like to know if this current RFP, 
#7550411, is the correct application for 
our organization. AS220 Youth provides 
direct services for youth in the juvenile 
detention system and intends to focus on 
transitional services for this population. If 
you could please guide us, we’d greatly 
appreciate it.  

There may be a range of services capable 
of achieving the outcomes identified in 
this RFP.  DCYF welcomes proposals 
from any provider offering to address 
outcomes identified in this RFP. 

52 Who is in the review team?  Specifically, 
is Casey going to be involved? 

See response to Question 5. 

53 Does the award process involve 
negotiations about the proposal submitted?  
Could/would DCYF come up with 
suggested changes to the proposal 
submitted so that it better suits their 
needs? 

No. The Department reserves the right to 
negotiate any terms of an award or 
contract (as opposed to a proposal) entered 
into as a result of this RFP. 

54 Can multiple proposals for the same 
service be submitted by the same agency? 

Yes. Please state in Technical Proposal 
element 2.1.1 if multiple proposals are 
being submitted by the same Offeror for 
the same service capacity. 

55 Can multiple billing structures for the 
same service be submitted? 

Only one billing structure may be included 
per proposal.  Vendors wish to propose 
multiple billing structures may do so with 
separate proposals. Please state in 
Technical Proposal element 2.1.1 if 
multiple proposals are being submitted by 
the same Offeror for the same service 
capacity.  

56 Are there additional RFPs slated to come 
out within the next year or so, as DCYF 
figures out where the gaps are? 

As DCYF announced in the Provider 
Bulletin of February 15, 2016, the 
Department anticipates issuing additional 
Requests for Proposals (RFPs) to 
reprocure its service array.  The additional 
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solicitations may include, but may not be 
limited to, services to prevent crisis-driven 
disruptions in care through mobile crisis 
response, services to accelerate and 
sustain adoption or guardianship when 
reunification is not an option, services to 
divert youth from the juvenile justice 
system (such as those provided through 
Wayward/Disobedient programs and 
Youth Diversionary Programs). Please 
monitor the website of the State of Rhode 
Island’s Division of Purchases at 
www.purchasing.ri.gov, where all 
information relating to these solicitations 
will be first published and prospective 
offerors may pre-register.  The state 
reserves the right to issue additional 
solicitations that it deems to be in its best 
interest. 

57 (Page 24 #3 bullet 2) The RFP states there 
can be 10 pages of appendices submitted 
by the Offeror; are these to be double-
sided? 

Appendices shall be submitted in the 
Technical Proposal packet. Original 
documents shall be printed single-sided 
and unbound; copies shall be printed 
double-sided and bound with a staple. 

58 Page 24 #4) The RFP discusses an option 
on page 18 to provide a proposed 
incentive-based fee structure, and the 
rationale and benefits for such payments. 
Is an Offeror permitted to submit both a 
per diem service rate as well as a proposed 
incentive-based fee option for 
consideration? 

Only one billing structure may be 
proposed. However, that billing structure 
may include elements of both per diem 
payments and incentive-based payments. 
See response to Question 55. 

59 (Page 34 #3) The RFP states the technical 
proposal should be written in 12 Font and 
single spaced.  It does not state which type 
font to use.  Should this be Times New 
Roman or another type font? 

Any professional business font -- such as 
Times New Roman, Cambria, Arial, or 
Calibri -- is acceptable. 

60 What impact, if at all, will “readiness to 
direct bill Medicaid and private health 
plans for covered activities and services” 
have upon how the Offerer is scored 

See response to Question 45. 

61 Our intent is to propose a continuum of 
services. In this continuum includes two 
services we are already providing and a 
brand new idea. We are contemplating 
whether or not we should submit one 
proposal for the whole continuum or two 
separate proposals. If we decide to submit 
one proposal only, but the Department 
does not want to fund one aspect of the 

See response to Question 54. 
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proposal, should we expect that the 
Department would contract with us for 
only one or two of the programs? Or 
should we simply do separate proposals? 

62 Can we combine different applications of 
MST for different populations into one 
proposal? 

See response to Question 17 and Question 
18. 

63 If we are proposing multiple MST teams 
to serve multiple populations, can we 
include all of those teams in one 
application, or do we need to complete a 
separate application for each proposed 
team? 

See response to Question 17. 

64 Can we combine Outcome Categories 2 
and 4 into one application or do we need 
to have a separate application for each 
Outcome Category for which we are 
proposing a service?  For example, an 
MST program will address both Outcome 
Category 2 and 4.  Is one application 
sufficient or do you want one MST team 
to address Outcome Category 2 by itself 
and another for Outcome Category 4? 

See response to Question 13. 

65 Can we offer different rates of service 
within one application depending on the 
provided services or recipient of those 
services? 

See response to Question 55. 

66 Can you provide clarification around 
quality incentives?   

Inclusion of incentive-based fees is 
optional. For proposals with incentive-
based fee structures, DCYF seeks 
proposals that align provider 
compensation with one or more of the 
strategic and business objectives outlined 
in this RFP, are based on performance 
levels justified by evidence offered in the 
Technical Proposal, and have outcome 
metrics tied to existing administrative data 
elements. 

67 Will it be possible to propose outcome-
based incentives in addition to a cost-
based reimbursement methodology? 

Please see response to Question 58. 

68 Can you clarify what “other infractions” 
mean when addressing critical incidents? 

See response to Question 50. 

69 Are you looking for the reporting of 
critical incidents that require reporting to 
DCYF only? 

See response to Question 50. The 
reporting of critical incidents is not limited 
to incidents that require reporting to 
DCYF. 

70 Are you looking for the reporting of 
critical incidents that involve children 
only? 

See response to Question 50. 
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71 If we are licensed by BHDDH, do we need 
to explain any critical incidents we have 
reported to BHDDH? 

See response to Question 50. 

72 Do you have numbers on the number of 
pregnant youth, the number of pregnant 
adults, and the number of children under 
the age of 1 involved with DCYF either in 
care or receiving services? 

Children under the age of 1 year old in 
DCYF care (source: RICHIST Report 
107): 
 
• As of 3/31/2016: 284 children (170 in 
out of home care) 
• As of 12/31/2016: 285 children (169 in 
out of home care) 
• As of 9/30/2016: 284 children (179 in 
out of home care) 
• As of 6/30/2016: 299 children (164 in 
out of home care) 
 
Information on the number of pregnant 
youth and pregnant adults is unavailable at 
this time. 

73 Can organizations apply their federal 
indirect rate to direct cost for the General 
and Admin budget or do we have to break 
out the General and Admin into specific 
components? (Occupancy, Payroll 
Processing, etc)? 

No, organizations may not apply their 
federal indirect rate in lieu of itemizing 
General and Administrative costs. General 
and Administrative costs must be itemized 
as instructed on page 55 of the RFP. 

74 There are currently 5 MST teams in the 
state.  Will DCYF continue to support 5 
MST teams or will they support more than 
5 or less than 5?  

It depends on the volume of need and 
specific proposals received. 

75 The Bidder cover form refers to “any 
officer, director, manager, stockholder…”; 
does this list of individuals include 
members of the Board of Directors at 
Providence Children’s Museum? 

Yes. 

76 Could you please be more specific and 
define what “all licenses” means in 
Section IV, question 2 of the Bidder 
Certification cover form? 

All licenses would mean any licenses 
necessary to perform the work within the 
scope of the RFP. 

77 Could you please explain the role of the 
new Central Referral Unit at DCYF? 

A Central Referral Unit (CRU) within 
DCYF's new Permanency Division has 
been built to connect children in DCYF 
care to the right services at the right times 
on a pathway to permanency, and to 
reduce reliance on congregate care 
settings. The CRU is responsible for all 
placement and referral functions 
previously delegated to the two lead 
Family Care Network agencies. The CRU 
will assess and process all referrals for 
home-based services previously provided 
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through the networks. Prior to referring 
children to foster care or congregate care 
placements, the CRU will review a level 
of need assessment that includes modules 
of the CANS Strengths and Needs 
Assessment.  This will ensure that children 
are immediately placed in the least-
restrictive settings possible, and that they 
are connected to services that meet their 
unique needs at the time of placement. If a 
need for an out-of-home placement is 
identified, all such referrals to congregate 
care settings will continue to be reviewed 
through the Department’s Director 
Approval Process (DAP). 

78 If an agency’s service is not primarily 
home-based, will proposals be considered 
for programs or services listed under 
sections 4A and 4B? 

Yes. 

79 Are we required to submit resumes for all 
social service program and Museum staff?  

No. The RFP asks Offerors to describe the 
qualifications, training, and experience of 
staff involved in delivery and supervision 
of the services proposed, and of the 
Offeror’s executive leadership team. 
Resumes may be included. 

80 Please define who the “clients” are (page 
57, Cost Category section, number 5); is it 
the number of families or number of 
parents and number of children? 

The definition of "clients" depends on the 
service proposed.  For the purpose of the 
Cost Proposal, clients may be considered 
the number of referrals who are enrolled in 
services. 

81 Please define “assumed duration” (page 
57, Cost Category section, number 6). 

The "assumed duration" may be 
considered to mean the anticipated 
average length of service in days per client 
served. 

82 Can you explain what is meant by the 
terms “comprehensive fidelity 
monitoring” and “remediation strategies” 
in section 2.3.3? 

"Comprehensive fidelity monitoring" may 
be considered to mean a process to track 
the extent to which services are delivered 
in a manner consistent with the planned 
service model and design. "Remediation 
strategies" may be considered to mean a 
process to resolve issues identified 
through fidelity monitoring. 

83 Page 10 of the RFP document targets 
juvenile justice involved youth. Are there 
any special or specific outcomes for this 
sub-group of youth, particularly related to 
TCP and other court imposed 
status/sentences as related to treatment 
outcomes, length of stay or other 
outcomes? 

Three primary performance objectives are 
identified for outcome category 2B on 
page 28 of the RFP. 
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84 Section 1.1.2 RFP asks for “specific 
methods to manage referrals when clients 
are not deemed appropriate for the 
proposed service intervention,” Does this 
mean the offeror will have the authority to 
transfer the client to the right level of 
care? 

No, the state retains final authority on case 
management and placement decisions. 

85 Section 1.1.2  
a. Does the RFP mean to suggest that each 
program will select, enroll, and retain 
participants?  
b. Does the RFP expect each application 
to have a process for recommending the 
type, level and/or duration of assistance 
for each program participant 

A. While the state retains final authority 
on case management and placement 
decisions, providers will have 
opportunities to offer input on their 
program’s fit for potential participants, 
will be responsible for enrolling 
participants once they have been referred 
to the program from the state, and will be 
responsible for ensuring participants 
remain engaged for the duration of the 
program.  
B. Yes. 

86 Section 1.1.3 Are all services to be 24/7? 
Is it required for all services? For Foster 
Care? For Residential? For new programs? 
Is the intake of all programming expected 
to be 24/7?  

Capacity to respond immediately to child, 
youth, and family needs on a continuous 
(24/7) basis is sought but not required. 

87 Section VI evaluation and section 
 a. How will each program be evaluated 
for cost when the proposed comparison 
group is by outcome category? For 
example, in Outcome Category 2A some 
of the programs that have historically 
received referrals include Outreach and 
Tracking, MST, Triple P, and PFN.  To 
compare these programs against each 
other on a cost basis does not seem 
appropriate.  Likewise, in Outcome 
Category 3B the cost comparison would 
include group homes, residential treatment 
programs, and secure residential treatment 
programs. Again, comparing these 
different types of residential programs 
against each other does not appear to be 
reasonable. 
 b. If an offeror submits a program that 
addresses needs across multiple outcome 
categories and there is no similar 
submissions will the offeror be 
automatically awarded the 30 points for 
the cost proposal? 

A. The evaluation design is based on best 
value. The aggregated score is determined 
by adding up the Technical points, Cost 
points, and bonus points.  Proposals are 
then ranked, the highest ranked score 
determines the best value. See response to 
Question 90 for more information. 
B. See response to Question 90. 

88 On page 3 it notes "All pricing submitted 
will be considered to be firm and fixed..." 

As stated on page 21, the Department 
reserves the right to negotiate any terms of 
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On page 21 it is stated "The 
State/Department reserves the right to 
negotiate any terms of this award 
including but not limited to offeror rates." 
Is that to mean a lowest bid could be 
increased or decreased during 
negotiations?  

an award, including, but not limited to, 
Offeror rates. 

89 On page 21 it is noted that each outcome 
category will be scored respective to the 
lowest responsive cost proposal to each 
outcome category. Does this mean the 
lowest bidder only who sufficiently meets 
minimum standards of all other RFP 
technical standards (i.e. score of 50) will 
be the #1 chosen vendor for this category 
at a total of 80 points compared to the 
bidder who may have received 60 points 
for program quality but 19 points for cost 
proposal after the cost formula is 
completed? Will the cost formulas take 
into account the services offered--for one 
example, services by a licensed clinician 
vs. case management services? Office vs. 
home-based? Statewide vs. regional? Cost 
of evidence-based practice 
implementation, ongoing licensing vs. 
home grown?  

See response to Question 90. 

90 Cost/pricing has the highest points 
attributed to it compared to any other 
criteria. Can you please explain the value 
theory, vision and philosophy behind this 
as it relates to each of the 8 outcome 
areas?  

The evaluation design is based on best 
value. Vendor proposals are first measured 
on their technical ability.   The technical 
phase measures the vendor’s ability to 
respond technically to the RFP request.  
All proposals that meet the technical 
threshold will then be advanced to the cost 
phase. The cost phase takes into 
consideration the price for the service.  
The aggregated score is determined by 
adding up both scores.  Proposals are then 
ranked, the highest ranked score 
determines the best value. 
 
-Technical Phase: 70 possible points. 
-Cost Phase: 30 possible points.  
-Bonus: 3 bonus points for incentive-based 
fee structures 

91 Does the cost proposal have any page 
limit? 

No. 

92 What are the total available funds 
associated/budgeted with this RFP?  

See response to Question 26. 
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93 What are the associated/budgeted funds 
for each of the 8 outcome areas?  

See response to Question 26. 

94 What is the total daily cost of the current 
contracts under this RFP? 

See response to Question 26. 

95 How many youth is this associated with on 
a daily basis?  

Detailed information on the target 
populations is provided in Appendix D, 
beginning on page 37. 

96 What is the total daily expense budgeted 
under this RFP once fully implemented? 

See response to Question 26. 

97 What are the daily numbers of youth to be 
served under this RFP once fully   
implemented?  

See response to Question 95. 

98 How will reviewers compare evidence-
based programs vs home-grown 
programs? Will one or the other be given 
greater points? Will independent 
evaluation of programs be given greater 
points? Will published recognized 
evidence-based programs be given greater 
points?   

See response to Question 10. 

99 In alignment with the Governor's 
priorities, will the agencies with 
headquarters in Rhode Island who agree to 
keep those headquarters in Rhode Island 
be given priority first in this RFP?  

No. 

100 What has NHP's involvement been in the 
development of this RFP? 

NHP has not been involved in the 
development of this RFP. 

101 Can you supply the list of all the out-of-
state providers currently under contract? 
How many youth do they each currently 
have? Their age range? Sex? And primary 
diagnosis being treated? 

This information may be requested 
through an Access to Public Records Act 
(APRA) request. 

102 On page 12 1.1.2 it is asked that we 
describe "policy and procedure for 
intaking, matching to services....." For 
providers proposing a continuum of 
services with various levels of care 
providers be able to determine   

This question is incomplete as submitted. 
The state is unable to respond. 

103 What are the approximate funds per day 
per child that DCYF is able to bill 
Medicaid for clinical services for each 
service on page 35 and page 36? This is 
relevant to this RFP as cost proposals and 
alternative funding is determined- i.e. if 
state loses the ability to bill Medicaid, 
$50.00 a day for a services because the 
provider no longer includes clinical in 
their per diem to DCYF and the provider 
can only recoup $25.00 a day for clinical 
services from insurance and changes their 

DCYF does not currently have a standard 
daily Medicaid rate for each clinical 
service. See response to Question 104 for 
more information. 
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intervention model due to this; the bidder 
must determine which they will propose is 
the best value for the state? Low per diem, 
low Medicaid recoupment, low clinical 
services or higher per diem, higher 
Medicaid recoupment, high clinical 
services. While outcomes should be the 
focus, risk and the ability to identify and 
respond to human risk with 
depth/experience are part of the value 
equation being tested by this bidder for 
response.  

104 Based on the services included in a 
proposal will the reviewers be informed 
and take into account the Medicaid 
recoupment the state will be able to obtain 
for each service during the budget 
scoring? For example 2 proposals are 
submitted to address outcome 2B (for 
purpose of example only). Both receive a 
score of 65 for the technical portion and 
move forward to budget scoring.  

The source of DCYF funding, including 
Medicaid dollars, will not be taken into 
account during the cost proposal and 
budget scoring. 

105 Proposal A Which is highly clinical, 
proposes in this response to bill DCYF 
100.00 per day and DCYF determines they 
can bill Medicaid 40.00 per day for 
services covered by Medicaid.  Total state 
costs 60.00 a day. Proposal B Which is a 
coordination, support program proposes in 
this response to bill DCYF 75.00 per day 
and DCYF determines it can bill Medicaid 
an average of 5.00 for services covered by 
Medicaid.  Total state costs is 70.00 a day. 
For the purposes of this RFP which 
proposal is the lowest bid: the cost in the 
proposal A. 100 vs b. 75 ? Or the  actual 
cost A. 60 vs B. 70 a day? Which will 
receive the 30 points?   

See response to Question 104. Proposal B 
would receive the 30 points in the cost 
proposal scoring process based on what is 
described in the question as "proposed 
costs". 

106 Please list the names of all those on the 
review team, Department where they work 
for and their titles?  Please list all advisors, 
their employer and title? 

See response to Question 5. 

107 If a proposal is able to leverage other 
funds - i.e. a total cost of 100.00 a day is 
reduced to 80.00 per day due to outside 
funding the bidder has secured it is 
proposed but DCYF will receive the full 
100.00 service but for 80.00 will this 
bidder be given value points compared to 
a 80.00 that has not match for example?  

See response to Question 104 and 
Question 105. 
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108 Are evidence based practices going to be 
compared against each other or along with 
non evidence based proposals?  

See response to Question 10 and Question 
87. 

109 Although we are of the need to submit the 
proposal based on 1 year if awarded 
renewals of the contract will there be a 
mechanism in place for rate adjustments? 

The mechanism for any rate adjustments 
may be addressed in the negotiated terms 
and conditions of the contract. 

110 Is there any guidance you can provide 
regarding how to structure incentive-based 
contracts?  

See response to Question 66. 

111 Are there any outcomes the department 
has prioritized and would like to see 
included in applications as part of the 
performance measures?  

Primary performance objectives are 
identified for each outcome category in 
Appendix B of the RFP.  

112 Will RICHIST be the data set used to 
identify successful achievement of 
performance measures 

Administrative data elements for assessing 
performance may include, but are not 
limited to, those included in RICHIST. 

113 If we address outcome 2A and outcome 
4A (for example) will our cost proposal 
only be compared with those other 
applications that also address 2A and 4A? 
If we address 3 or 4 or more will we only 
be compared to those with those 
addressing the same combination of 
outcomes?      

See response to Question 87 and Question 
90. 

114 Budget Summary Form – There is a 
section to designate the” Time of 
Performance” is the anticipated dates for 
the contract July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 
or should we enter another time frame? 

Please enter from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 
2017. 

115 Budget Summary Form – Lines 5,6 and 7 
are formatted as “currency” may we 
change this to be formatted as a 
“number”? 

Yes. 

116 Are there start-up costs available and if so 
should we incorporate these into the daily 
rate? 

The Department will consider justified 
program startup costs itemized under 
Other Direct Costs and calculated as 
instructed as part of the Effective Daily 
Rate. 

117 The RFP asks for the “outcome category” 
for which the proposal is primarily 
designed to address, (2.1.2) but also seeks 
proposals that are designed to address one 
or more outcome categories. Assuming the 
offeror has a service that can address more 
than one outcome category:  
a) Can more than one category be 
identified as “primary”  
b) How do multiple categories get 
identified in the proposal? 

A. No. Only one primary outcome 
category may be identified in Technical 
Proposal element 2.1.1. 
B. Additional outcomes may be identified 
in Technical Proposal element 2.1.2. 
C. Proposals addressing multiple outcome 
categories will receive a single score. 
D. Multiple sets of metrics can be 
proposed. No additional pages will be 
allowed.  
E. No. See response to Question 47 and 
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c)  Does this mean that the proposal can be 
jointly scored and evaluated for more than 
one outcome category (eg. 2.A. and 4.B.)? 
or are they scored twice, once in each 
outcome category? 
d) If the outcomes are different (e.g. the 
service can shorten length of stay for kids 
out of home, but can prevent out-of-home 
placement for kids in the community) can 
the offeror identify two different sets of 
outcome metrics based on which way the 
service is being used?  Will there be an 
accommodation to cover the extra pages 
necessary to accurately reflect this in the 
proposal? 
e) If the per day cost is different for these 
two outcome categories, how is this 
indicated in the budget and will there be 
additional space allowed for the additional 
budgetary information created by the 
added reporting requirements? 

55. 
 
Multiple proposals for the same service 
may be submitted by the same Offeror. 
Please state in Technical Proposal element 
2.1.1 if multiple proposals are being 
submitted by the same Offeror for the 
same service capacity. 

118 Will DCYF provide CANS and OHIO 
outcomes in a timely manner to 
agencies/programs that they have been 
collecting since 2012? 

Individual-level assessment information is 
available to providers through the EOHHS 
HP website.  A March 2015 report on 
aggregate CANS assessment outcomes is 
available on the DCYF Data and 
Evaluation website at 
http://www.dcyf.ri.gov/data_evaluation.ph
p. 

119 Can an offeror propose a service with two 
possible capacities (e.g. can it offer to 
serve 20 or 40 youth whichever the DCYF 
prefers)? Or would this be considered non 
responsive to Question 2.2.1: “ 2.2.1. 
Describe the target population proposed to 
be served. Such descriptions shall 
include……..,the total number of clients 
to be served annually, the service’s point-
it-time capacity…” 

Yes, as long as the Effective Daily Rate 
remains the same at either capacity. 

120 In section 2.1.2, terminology such as 
‘Performance Metric’ and ‘Performance 
Targets’ can be used in many ways. In 
addition, the samples in Appendix B are 
referred to as  ‘Objectives’. Can you 
clarify whether a ‘Performance Metric’ is 
a measure itself or a goal related to a 
specific measures’ outcomes? Perhaps 
providing us a written example would be 
helpful. 

"Performance metric" may be considered 
to mean a unit of measurement used to 
monitor program delivery or results. 
"Performance target" may be considered 
to mean the desired level of performance 
as indicated by such metrics.  "Objectives" 
listed in Appendix B may be considered to 
mean services' causal effects, which have 
prioritized by the department for each 
respective outcome category. 
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121 How is the Department comparing budgets 
within program models? For example, if 
we submit a proposal for MST PSB, the 
budget/cost will be different than that of a 
standard MST team, so our budget should 
not be compared to that of standard MST 
or any other evidenced-based models. Is 
there a scale that will be used so that 
budgets are being compared “apples to 
apples” so to speak? 

See response to Question 87. 

122 Are foster care rates negotiable? Cost Proposal may propose fees to be 
charged to DCYF for services. 

123 Can you define 4.3.2? Are you referring to 
assaults on staff by RI children only (for 
out of state agencies), assaults on clients 
by staff? 

See response to Question 50. 

124 For foster care agencies looking to provide 
a variation of services (to meet the needs 
of more than one specialty population) 
should we submit separate program bids 
reflecting each population? 

See response to Question 39. 

125 Page 12 of the RFP states: “The Technical 
Proposal must address specifically each of 
the following required elements. Offeror 
shall present proposal in the same 
sequence and with the same letter scheme 
and the first sentence of headings shown 
in this Section.” 
 
Would this format be correct: 
 
 1. Quality of Proposed Services  
 1.1. Service model and delivery  
 1.1.1 (Begin text for response to question 
1.1.1 here…) 
 
or would it need to be as follows: 
 
 1. Quality of Proposed Services 
 1.1. Service model and delivery  
 1.1.1. Describe the specific service, or set 
of integrated services, the Offeror 
proposes to provide.  (Begin text for 
response to question 1.1.1 here…) 
 
or something different? 

The second (bottom) format is correct. 

126 We are located in Massachusetts and have 
an authorized tuition rate from the 
Executive Office for Administration and 
Finance, Operational Services Division 

Out of state providers may submit a Cost 
Proposal, including an itemized budget, 
using their in-state rate as the basis for that 
proposal.  If the rate proposed is the same 
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pursuant to 808 CMR 1.06.  See attached. 
We do not charge an out-of-state rate.  
Can we use our rate that is approved in 
MA instead of submitting a new budget 
and getting a different rate for our RI 
residents? 

as their in-state rate, providers are asked to 
include in the Cost Proposal 
documentation of that rate agreement with 
their home state (such as a reference to 
state regulations, a voided invoice, or 
other proof of payment). 

127 If we do have to submit a budget for our 
RI residents, we could use the same 
budgeted line items so the calculated rate 
could come out the same as our MA rate, 
but if there are annual increases from 
either MA or RI, the rate would end up 
being different over time.  We currently 
have 4 out of 26 residents in our 
Residential Education program from RI.  
We would like to continue to charging the 
same rate for in-state and out-of-state 
tuition. 

See response to Question 109 and 
Question 126. 

128 What are the qualifications of those 
reviewing the proposals?  The needs and 
supports necessary for working with 
persons with autism and developmental 
disability differ distinctly from other 
populations that DCYF address, so please 
speak to the reviewer’s expertise in autism 
and developmental disabilities, and the 
clinical qualifications of the reviewers. 

See response to Question 5. 

129 How do we fit the Technical Proposal into 
10 pages with the length of questions that 
are to be included?  Can the questions be 
abbreviated? 

See response to Question 47 and Question 
125. 

130 Will the reviewer take into account the 
different levels of expertise and cost 
differentials that are inherent in the 
treatment of persons with autism and 
developmental disabilities, often with co-
occurring psychiatric disorders and severe 
behavioral challenges such as biting, 
aggression, self-injury, pica, and fecal 
smearing? 

Offerors are encouraged to fully describe 
staff qualifications and associated costs 
proposed for service delivery. 

131 Bradley Hospital operates 4 group homes 
for youth/adolescents who are dually 
diagnosed with an intellectual disability 
and a psychiatric illness. The 
youth/adolescents have been placed with 
DCYF voluntarily under an 
arrangement/agreement with their 
parents/guardians. Prior to their 
involvement in this service all the 
youth/adolescents and families had been 

As stated on page 11, long-term group 
care placements accessed through 
Medicaid health plans or private insurance 
are excluded from this solicitation.  
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involved in extensive, home based 
therapeutic services which ultimately were 
not adequate enough to enable these youth 
to continue to reside at home. The homes 
have been in existence for many years and 
have been focused , therefore, on 
providing long term care and treatment to  
these youth/adolescents and their families. 
Are these programs to be considered under 
the current RFP? 
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Vendor Questions for RFP # 7550411 PRE-BID QUESTIONS 

 

 Question Response 

PB_1 Is there a minimum number of children 
with family that you would want to be 
serviced by the proposal? 

No. 

PB_2 If you have multiple services at the same 
level of care, are you able to submit one 
proposal for, say, three programs at the 
same level or care or do you need to 
submit three different proposals? Say 
you have three houses that are residential 
treatment facilities. They all offer the 
same service. Do you have to submit 
three proposals for each house? 

Such services may be proposed in a single 
proposal as a bundled set of integrated 
services.  For additional information, see 
response to Question 17. 

PB_3 You had mentioned a summit in 
November of 2015 that served to inform 
the RFP. Is there a document that exists 
with the information outcomes of that 
summit that may serve some component 
of the proposal? 

Information on the November 2015 
Summit on Improving Outcomes is 
available on the DCYF website at 
http://www.dcyf.ri.gov/docs/summit/index
.php. 

PB_4 So this is really in reference to 
describing the outcome measures that 
you are requesting. So under Section 2.1, 
it says, outcomes to be achieved. And the 
first, 2.1.1 it says, identify which 
outcome category this proposal is 
primarily designed to accomplish. And 
then under 2.1.2 it says, describe 
additional outcomes. But then it says, 
propose up to three primary performance 
metrics, and propose performance 
targets. So do you not want performance 
measures and performance targets for the 
required outcomes? 

The primary performance metrics and 
performance targets requested in 
Technical Proposal element 2.1.2 may 
refer to the outcome category identified in 
Technical Proposal element 2.1.1 that the 
services are primarily designed to 
accomplish. 

PB_5 So we can expect to have that answer by 
Monday? 

The state has worked to expediently 
respond to vendor questions. 

PB_6 For the locally developed programs 
where you're requesting a theory of 
change and a new logic model. Do you 
expect to require both of those, or even 
the detailed logic model, that shows all 
your, you know, referrals, outlets, 
outcomes, you also need to devise a 
theory to change the model? 

See response to Question 2. 

PB_7 On the technical side of things, on the 
technical proposal itself, it says, 
maximum 10 pages and then up to 10 
appendices. Will the Department 
consider more than 10 pages? 

See response to Question 47. 
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PB_8 On the proposal itself, it says to repeat 
the first sentence of the multiple 
sentences on there. This is a space saving 
exercise, up to 10 pages. It says, describe 
the services X and then it goes into 
greater detail. Do we just repeat that first 
sentence? And might we just -- Because 
each section, one point, one point, one 
point one is probably four, five, six 
sentences, and what we're doing right 
now is repeating the entire question. It's 
taking up much of the 10 pages. 

See response to Question 47 and Question 
125. 

PB_9 It wasn't very clear on the cost proposal 
side of the proposal. Appendices are up 
to 10 pages. Technical is 10 pages. But 
cost proposal, it didn't seem to have any 
page limits or anything like that? 

See response to Question 91. 

PB_1
0 

On the cost proposal itself, it's says, time 
of performance. This is one-year contract 
with four additional terms. Would we set 
up our full focus on five years or one 
years? And the answer, again, leads to a 
cost of living adjustment, that we tie into 
that, if any. 

See response to Question 109 and 114. 

PB_1
1 

On the prime service rate details itself, it 
looks like it's trying to add the three 
sections together on the bottom. But then 
the calculations on the bottom kind of 
threw me for a little loop in terms of 
putting the bottom number on Page 1 of 
the summary, but that looks like kind of 
a per diem. The calculation doesn't seem 
to match up to what it's trying to do. So 
it almost looks like it wants to grab the 
subtotal and not the total on Page 1. 

Offerors are instructed to generate an 
Effective Daily Rate by dividing the sum 
of costs related to Prime Services, 
Subcontractor Services, and Other Direct 
Costs by the total client-days of service 
proposed. This Effective Daily Rate will 
be used to evaluate cost proposals. 

PB_1
2 

I'm alluding to Page 24. And it says, 
technical proposals shall be written in 
size 12 font, single spaced, et cetera. But 
there's no margins given. Can we use 
tiny, tiny margins?  

Proposals should have a minimal page 
margin of 0.75 inches. 

PB_1
3 

On 4.2 of the financial management, 
4.2.3 asks the vendor to describe its 
readiness for Medicaid direct billing. Is 
that a requirement in this RFP? If it's not 
a requirement, is there any priorities or 
will the review teams be emphasizing 
extra points for that ability? 

See response to Question 45 and Question 
49. 

PB_1
4 

On Page 56 there's a statement that says, 
the department will consider justified 
program startup costs itemized under 

As stated on page 56, please itemize any 
proposed program startup costs under 
Other Direct Costs. 
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Other Direct Costs. It would seem to me 
--about startup costs. It says, the 
department will consider but that you 
should put it under Other Costs, which I 
think will inflate your rate. So is that 
really how the department wants you to -
- or do you want a separate budget if 
there's a startup cost request? 

PB_1
5 

I'm referring to Page 53, it's the 2.a. for 
the budget. And my question is, on the 
section that has assumed number of 
service required and assumed number of 
clients to be served, the format is in 
currency.  

See response to Question 115. 

PB_1
6 

There's reference in there to long-term 
residential placement and short-term 
residential placement. Can you sort of 
define the difference? It specifically 
references that those services should be 
short-term.  In another part of the 
proposal, it does make reference to long-
term care. So, again, what I'm trying to 
get an understanding is, is that relevant 
to this proposal? Is this a proposal for, a 
new proposal centered on short-term 
interventions, short-term care, and/or 
does it also include long-term care which 
is being provided by, you know, the 
main agencies? 

The Department seeks to shift its 
programming towards a System of Care 
that utilizes group placement only when 
necessary for short-term treatment. In 
requesting proposals for residential and 
group care, DCYF seeks services that 
demonstrate a philosophy that residential 
treatment is an episode of clinical care 
rather than long-term placement option. 
For more information on long-term group 
care placements, see response to Question 
131. 

PB_1
7 

Does an out of state provider who 
currently provides residential services to 
Rhode Island clients in a program 
located in another state need to respond 
and be awarded under this RFP? 
Whether the service does qualify in this 
proposal is the route of the question, 
because the department is seeking us as 
out of state providers to comply with a 
policy that conflicts with the statutes that 
we have in out of state. Therefore, you're 
asking us to reconfigure a program 
service to meet the needs of the 
Department. We need just some 
clarifications how that happens, the rate 
in which it happens, and the relevance to 
the out of state. 

See response to Question 15, Question 
126, and Question 127. 

PB_1
8 

I wanted to speak more about evidence 
informed versus the locally developed 
programs. Is it just what you're looking 
for that someone mentioned already? So 

See response to Question 9 and Question 
10. 
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just how you distinguish that. And the 
second part of that question is, is the 
Department expecting to pay for cost of 
the certification and training for an 
evidence-based model? Because it is 
pretty pricey. 

PB_1
9 

Can an agency submit multiple 
programming services for the same 
service? Because we have an option 
where we can either bundle the service 
or make separate proposals for 
standalone services. So if you were 
going to do two separate proposals, or 
multiple proposals, one of which 
multiple standalones or one bundled, 
what would be the mechanism for 
preventing us from competing against 
ourselves as well? We don't want to end 
up in a situation where we have one 
proposal that's bundled services, several 
other proposals that are standalones, and 
have the bundled and the standalones 
both be accepted. So how do we do that? 

See response to Question 55. 

PB_2
0 

Would the standalone versus bundled be 
part of the negotiation process? If we 
were to propose it in one way, would that 
part be part of a negotiation with the 
Department? 

No. See response to Question 53. 

PB_2
1 

The same thing would go for negotiation 
for multiple possible billing structures. 
Because in the RFP they talk about 
incentives versus per diems. 

See response to Question 88. 

PB_2
2 

We provide services to youth in a 
juvenile detention center. And I'm 
talking about Page 11, regarding the 
exclusions. It says that excluded are 
services to help transition children, 
youth, families from care. But then that's 
what we hope other programs 
accomplishes. So does that mean that our 
services would be excluded from this 
proposal?   

See response to Question 51 and Question 
56. 

PB_2
3 

The technical review team, will that be 
made up exclusively of representatives 
from DCYF or will representatives from 
other agencies or organizations be a part 
of that? Would we know who those 
experts are? Would that be posted 
somewhere? 

See response to Question 5. 
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PB_2
4 

In terms of procurement, will the 
Department consider a rolling RFR after 
a certain holding period and you then 
open the RFR back up for any providers 
in the future interested in provider 
service or are you stipulated on the 
contract separately? 

No. For more information, see response to 
Question 56. 

PB_2
5 

We specifically serve children and youth 
on the autism spectrum of the disability. 
And Appendix G, or Page 53, there's a 
list of national databases of evidenced-
based programming. Other than one 
reference to U.S. Department of 
Education What Works Clearinghouse, 
there are no references to evidence-based 
practices and developmental disabilities. 
Will there be an opportunity for us to 
provide information to the Department 
about what types evidenced-based we 
need in our field outside of the proposal 
or do we need to include that? Because 
it's going to take up a bunch of pages. 

Information about prior research and 
evaluation may be appropriate to include 
in the Technical Proposal Appendix. For 
more information, see response to 
Question 10. 

PB_2
6 

Are you expecting letters of support? 
You don't mention anything about that. 
I've been in the position before with 
grants where they don't mention it. 

No. 

PB_2
7 

What time are you going to start 
accepting proposals on that day? 

8:30 AM 

PB_2
8 

I was wondering was, the response to 
some of those technical expertise 
questions may actually – can affect -- 
significantly change your date. And what 
I'm wondering is, you don't have a 
deadline when you're going to post those 
questions. So if you get these questions 
April 4th by 5:00, whenever there's a 
deadline or anything like that, to get to 
technical review, you may not be posting 
responses until April 15th. And I'm 
wondering, if that were the case, if you'd 
consider moving the date reflecting the 
time that you post the answers to the 
questions. So in other words, if you're 
posting them the next day, that's one 
thing. But in the past, I've seen 
sometimes it takes a while to get quality 
answers. Instead of rushing those 
answers, and also rushing responses, you 
want to get quality responses. I think it 
would -- if you take under consideration 

Clarifications, if any, will be posted 
through addenda.  Please monitor the 
Division of Purchases website at 
http://www.purchasing.ri.gov for all 
communications pertaining to this RFP. 
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that, hey, if it takes you a week to answer 
the questions, it takes you a week, but 
then that changes everybody's, you 
know, teams, what they're doing. 

PB_2
9 

If you do make adjustments to the actual 
proposal, is there a process to denote 
which paragraphs are deleted and which 
are then inserted or do we have to read 
all 80 pages when you guys re-post the 
RFP? 

Clarifications, if any, will be posted 
through addenda.  Please monitor the 
Division of Purchases website at 
http://www.purchasing.ri.gov for all 
communications pertaining to this RFP. 

PB_3
0 

So this RFP excludes adoption, 
guardianship, alternative permanency 
options. And I understand why you 
would chunk them up. However, it also 
speaks a lot to permanency and how 
many of our kids' permanency will be 
adoption or guardianship. So to have a 
list of foster care or residential programs, 
et cetera, you would be working with 
those kids to prepare them for those 
other options which then would impact 
our residential or foster care cost. So I'm 
wondering if this permanency means 
solely reunification with family or is it 
also, in the Department's view, kind of 
stepping down as opposed to all the 
different options or what some of those 
kids are actually -- I'm -- Are we able to 
carve out some of that support? Is that 
what your goal is? Or you keep them? 
But that's how the intent of this RFP is. 
So I'm not sure how to address that. 

See response to Question 42 and Question 
43. 

PB_3
1 

I have a question about the tables starting 
on Page 27 that accompany each of the 
outcomes. Under the potential program 
elements, are those -- are each of those 
that are listed in those tables required in 
order to be deemed as responding to the 
RFP or are those – can you respond and 
include some of those service elements 
but not all? 

See response to Question 40. 

PB_3
2 

My understanding is that the main 
adoption recruitment and support 
contracts in the state of Rhode Island are 
going to be reprocured at a later date, 
which Adoption Rhode Island has many 
of those contracts. But in this current 
procurement, permanency equals 
guardianship, reunification, and adoption 
related to placement services and 

See response to Question 46. 
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supports, family-based and community-
based supports to support that. We will 
put it in writing. That's just our 
assumption. But I think that's where it 
gets confusing, whether or not 
permanency equals step down in this or 
permanancy equals adoption, 
guardianship, and reunification as it 
relates to the current children in 
placement and community-based 
services. 

PB_3
3 

On Page 29 in the supplemental 
characteristics, there's a reference to 
well-developed plans for ongoing 
recruitment of foster families. Is that -- 
And I know you can't answer questions 
about subsequent RFPs. But is that 
specifically for foster families, and/or 
will there be a separate request for 
recruitment of adoptive families in 
subsequent proposals, or should we 
assume that recruitment for families, for 
resource families, is what you're talking 
about here, whether it's foster parents or 
preadoptive parents? 

See response to Question 44. 
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